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Reference and Administrative Details (continued}
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements ard auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees' report, and a directors' report and strategic report under company law,

The Trust operates five First Schools, three Middle Schools and one High School, either in or near Uttoxeter,
Staffordshire. It is made up of a mixture of faith and non-faith schoals. its academies have a combined pupil
capacity of 3,266 and had a roll of 2,617 in the school census on October 2023.

Structure, governance and management

a. Constitution

The Academy Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable
company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary goveming documents of the Academy
Trust. The constituent academies of the Trust are:

Academy 1: Thomas Alleyne's High School

Academy 2: Windsor Park CE (C) Middle Schoal

Academy 3: Picknalls First School

Academy 4: Oldfields Hall Middle School

Academy 5: Al Saints CE (C) First School

Academy 6: Hutchinson Memorial First School CE (A) First School
Academy 7: Ryecroft Middle CE {C) School

Academy 8: The Richard Clarke First Schoo!

Academy 9: Bramshall Meadows First School

4 & & &8 & & * » 2

The Trustees of Uttoxeter Learning Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purpases of
company law.

The charitable company is known as Uttoxeter L.earning Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and adminisirative details on page 1.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management {continued)

b. Members’ liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of It being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member,

Members and Trustees

The members of the Trust:

1.

2.

CECET Corporate Member:

Lichfield Diocese Member and Chair of Board of Trustees: Sid Slater

+ Education consultant and external expert with Department for Education
» Former Civil Servant, senior education advisor

« Former Local Authority Officer

» Former secondary Headteacher

Education and Academic Progression (HE): Professor Liz Barnes (Chalr of Members)
+ Vice Chancellor and Chief Executive Staffordshire University - retired

The Governors of the Trust {also known as Trustees) — they are responsible for the core strategic functions:

1.

2,

Chair of Board (and Cok): Sid Slater (see above)

Business and Community; Stuart Harper

+ Chartered Engineer

+ Industry experience and experence of continuous improvement and leadership development at JCB,
and more recently Magna specialist confectioners.

+ Chairman of Uttoxeter Rugby Juniors.

Special Needs and Safeguarding (and CoE): Vicky Bennett, (resigned 24 Nov 2022)
o Dentist (p/t); NHS special care dentistry working with physical and learning difficulties
+ Chair of Governors of Hutchinson Memorial First School CE {A) First School

Rev Margaret Sherwin, CoE Trustee (chair of Education Commitlee)
+ Rector of Uttoxeter (CoE)
+ Ex Trustee of a MAT in the North West before relocating to the area

Pauline Livesey
+ Advisory Executive Headleacher

HR and Well-being: Colin Haswell,

« Experience HR Leader having worked at a senfor level for BMW Group, Rolls-Royce Ple and Bail
Corporation

» Feliow of the Chartered Institute of Personne! and Development

Finance: Simon Pearce (Chair of Finance and Audit Committee)

+ Chartered Accountant

+ Experienced Company Secretary and previously Director of Corporate Governance of the Financial
Conduct Authority
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Strucfure, governance and management {continued)

8. Safeguarding and Special Educational Needs: Pat Hunt (appointed 01 Mar 2023)
« Senior Leadership experience in secondary schools and was a primary headieacher
» Ex Chief Executive Officer in a local MAT
s School Improvement Consultant with a particular specialism in in special educational needs and primary
education,

9. Legal: Julie Wheeldon (appointed 30 Mar 2023)
+ Qualified solicitor
+ Compliance and Regulalions Auditor for a property company
« Level 3 Diploma in Specialist Support for Teaching and Learning in Schools
« Trust Leadership Team

CEOQ: Sarah Clarl: Ultoxeter MAT Chief Executive Officer (1.0fte} {resigned May 14" 2023)

interim CEO:; Trevor Sutcliffe MAT Chief Executive (0.6fte) { 1% May 2023 - August 31! 2023)

CFO: Andy Storer: Uttoxeter MAT Chief Finance Officer (0.6fte and 0.4fte), Business and Operations Manager
Thomas Alleyne's High School till 28th Febriary 2023, from 1st March 2023 Uttoxeter MAT Chief Finance Officer

{1.0fte).

¢. Trustees' indemnities

Trustees in the Uttoxeter Learning Trust are insured relating to governors’ indemnity through the Department for
Educalion insurance scheme for academiss, the Risk Protection Arrangement, which provides unlimited

indemnity cover.
d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Articles of Association (para 45) specify that there should be no more than 13 Trustees and 5 members,
Members should appoint up to 7 Trustees (para 5C) and the Lichfield Diocese, through its educational arm
CECET, up to 40% of the total number. The term of office is 4 years and providing the Trustee remains eligible
to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee may be re-appointed or re-elecled.

Trustees are recruited by invitation or advertising from people who are able to benefit the Academy Trust by their
knowiedge and expertise. The Board and its committees should have the appropriate balance of skills and
knowledge of the company to enable them to discharge their respective duties and responsibilities effectively.
“The search for board candidates are conducted, and appointments made, on merit, against objective criterla and
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the board, including gender

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The induction and training process for Trustees would normally Include:

Meetings with the Board of Trustees and the senior leadership team of the Academy Trust;

Attending a Trustees’ meeting before becaming a Trustes;

Visits to key locations or service providers,

Ongoing training in legislation and responsibilities;

Support and challenge from existing Trustees and guidance in terms of required reading and development
Access to online and face to face training opporiunities

*« 8 8 & 8 »
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management {continued}

f. Organisational structure

Members {meeting termly)
Members have an “eyes on, hands off” overview of the governance arrangements of the Trust.
Quorum: 50% Role:

s Appoint a Chair, on an annual basis, from amongst its Members.

s Appoint and remove Trustees and appeint and remove Members via a special resolution (requiring 75% to

agree),

Appoint and remove auditers {requiring a majority vote to agree)

Ensure compliance with Articles of Association, including agreeing and amending.

Receive and challenge the annual accounts.

Hold the Board of Trustees to account including through the Vision, Values and Strategic Direction

statement and the Trust Improvement Plan.

+ The Chair of the Members should have the final say in the case of any disagreements between the Members
and the Board of Trustees.

« Decisions: Ordinary resolutions require a majority of Members and special resolutions require 75% to agree.
Request, receive and challenge information from the Board of Trustees in order to discharge their role as
Members as defined in the Articles of Association.

» Meet 3 times per year, including the AGM with Trustees.

& & & &

Members {meeting termily)

Members will meet at least every term which will include an annual general meeting to be held during the spring
term. The quorum for any meeting is at least 2 members.

Roles and responsibilities are:

+ Sign the memorandum and articles of association (and agree any subseguent changes).
s Determine the name of the Trust (Uttoxeter Learning Trust).

= Appoint members and Trustees.

« Appoint and remove the auditors.

« Receive a copy of the Annual Accounts and Report,

+ Ensure success of the ULT.

Board of Trustees (meeting half-termly after Education and Finance and Audit Committees and prior to termly
Members meetings). Quorum for meetings is any 3 Trustees.

Trustees are company directors of the Uttoxeter Learning Trust, which is registered at Companies House. The
Trustees focus on three core funclions: ensuring clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction, holding executive
leaders to account for the educational performance of the organisation and its pupils, and the performance
management of staff, and overseeing and ensuring effective financial performance’ (AFH p13).

The Beard of Trustees is responsible for the overall strategic direction of the Multi-Academy Trust. The Trustees
have a duty to act in the fulfilment of the Academy Trust objects. They set the strategic direction, and determine
the policies and procedures of the Academy Trust whilst holding each academy within the Academy Trust to
account. The Trustees meet al least six times a year and local governing body representatives report to
meetings of the Board of Trustees throughout the vear. Trustees operate under Nolan's seven principles of
public life.

Each academy within the Academy Trust is governed by a local governing body (LGB). The Academy LGB is
responsible for determining the sirategic direction of the Academy in accordance with the overall strategic

Page 6
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management {continued)

direction of the Academy Trust. The LGB should engage with the local community, constructively challenge the
leadership team of the Academy and provide evaluative feedback and supporting evidence to the board of
Trustees on the impact and effectiveness of the collective and individuals aims, objectives, policies, targets and
future plans.

The Board of Trustees and each LGB do not exercise a managerial role of their schools. The leadership and
management of schools across the Academy Trust is delegated by the Board of Trustees o the Headteacher
and Senior Leadership Team within each Academy. The Headleachers and Senior Leadership Teams are
responsible at an executive level for implementing the policies and strategies laid down by Board of Trustees.
Schools report back to their Governing Boards, CEQ and varlous committees of the Trust Board and repoerting
back to them through various committees. This includes actions concerning the budget, staffing, school
improvement and safeguarding.

The Chief Executive Officer is the Accounting Officer and is responsible for the authorisation of spending within
agreed budgets with the support of the Chief Finance Officer. Some spending control is devalved to designated
budget holders within the hierarchy of limits and in accordance with the approved Financial Regulations and
Financial Scheme of Delegation.

Board of Trustees
Meetings — the board will meet at least half-termly

Quicrum — at least 3 Trustees, or, where greater any third of the total number of Trustees holding office
Chair and Vice Chair - appuinted annually, at the first meeting of a new school year

Roles and Responsibilities:
Roles and responsibilities are:

« Review and take responsibitity for the Scheme of Delegation and Governance Structure (SoD}.

« Ensure that the ULT and all of its schooels comply with statutory guidance for the protection and safeguarding
of pupils.

« Ensure dlarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction of the ULT, reviewing and revising as appropriate the
Vision, Values and Strategic Direction statement in partnership with the Members,

« Hold executive leaders to account for the educational performance of all ULT schools and its pupils, and the
performance management of staff.

« Oversee the financial performance of the ULT and making sure its money is well spent.

« Take responsibility for, approve and evaluate the overall ULT Improvement Plan and targets, and ensure
that the individual school improvement plans both inform it and are consistent with it.
To remove the local governing boards and deiegated powers should serious concermns arise,
Support and challenge the local governing boards of schools, including consideration of any issues brought
from the Headteacher Professional Board or from the School Representation Board (chairs of governors and
headteachers) — and intervene when deemed necessary.

« lavite, where appropriate, representative headteachers and chairs of LGBs to trust board meetings in order
to ensure effective communication and accountability.

« Appoint and, if required, dismiss executive Leaders and all other key roles in afi ULT schools, ensuring
effective and efficient processes and procedures are in place for both.

« Oversee the effactive performance management of all executive leaders within ULT, including the Chief
Executive Officer, who should be performance managed by the Chair of the Board of Trustees.

« Ensure all executive leaders have processes in place to ensure the effective performance management of all
school staff,

« Discharge all responsibilities as set out under the Articles of Association, Funding Agreement and Academy

Page 7
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

.« & * »

Trust Handbook, adopting a “do, or explain™ approach.

Ensure robust governance and effective financial management arrangements.

Ensure a central fund is established and maintained so that targeted investments can be made in staff CPD,
buildings, IT infrastructure etc. and that unforeseen circumstances that may have a financtal impact not
covered by insurance can be effectively dealt with by the ULT.

Approve a written Scheme of Financial Delegation that maintains robust internal control arrangements.
Approve a balanced budget for each school and any significant changes to budgets which can draw on
unspent funds brought forward from previous years (and minute these approvals).

Submit to the Education Funding Agency (EFA) a budget forecast, notifying the EFA within 14 days if it is
formally proposing to set a deficit budget for the current financial year, which it is unable to address, after
unspent funds from previous years are taken into account.

Be able to show that public funds have been used as intended by Pariament.

Ensure the publication of up-to-date governance arrangements to comply with the ATH guidance.

Evaiuate the trust board’s own effectiveness.

Ensure there is accurate and up-to-date documentation and effective communication of the Board's
decisions and impact to stakeholders e.g. parents, the cormimunity, LGBs and the Lichfield Diocese.

Provide Members with information as requested in a timely manner.

Request, receive and challenge, information from the Finance and Audit and Education Committees

Finance and Audit Committee

Meetings — the committee will meet at least half-termly {prior to meetings of the Trust Board}

Quorum — at least 3 Trustees

Chair and Vice Chair — appointed annually, at the first meeting of a new school year

Roles and Responsibilities:

Review and take responsibility for the Financial Scheme of Delegation.

‘Take responsibility for all financial decisions across the MAT in accordance with the limits set in the SoD.
Receive and challenge reports from the Chief Finance Officer and hold the Accounting Officer to account for
all financial and audit matters.

Discharge the functions of an audit committee, thereby providing oversight of the Trust's internal controls
and the effective management of assets.

Ensure an efficient and robust internal audit process is implemented by an independent qualified auditor that
annually considers key aspecis of Trust financial performance, internal controls and the effective
management of assets and receive the associated reports and menitor the effective implementation of any
agreed recommendations.

Ensure an efficient and robust external audit process is implemented by appointing an independent qualified
auditor that annually considers key aspects of Trust financial performance, internal controls and the effective
management of assets and receive the associated reports and monitor the effective implementation of any
agreed recommendations.

Hold to account those ensuring financial scrutiny and oversight of each school and across the MAT.

Ensure goed financial management and effective internal contrals to ensure compliance, regularity, propriety
and value for money.

Ensure compliance with the Funding Agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook.

Ensure sufficient rigor and scrutiny in the budget management process to understand and address variances
between the budget that has been set and actual income and expenditure.

Receive and consider information on financial performance at least 6 times a year, and take appropriate
action to ensure ongoing viability.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

» & = »

« * & & »

Agree admissions policies and monitor admissions, and take overall responsibifity for marketing.

Receive and investigate any whistleblowing allegations refating to financial issues.

Review any parental complaints made against individual schools that have been referred by the Trust Board.
Manage risk, including satling and managing risk appetite, tolerance and mitigation strategies and reviewing
the risk register.

Receive reports on key health and safety issues and ensure adequate insurance cover.

Approve key staffing changes thal have financial implications on schools such as redundancies.

Approve arrangements for nationally agreed pay awards for all ULT schools.

Approve staffing decisions, including dismissals and early retirements.

Determine a resources, assets and property development plan for across the MAT, and review ali significant
decisions relating to resources, assets and property, including procurement, maintenance and write-offs
cansistent with the scheme of delegation.

Provide the Board of Trustees with information as requested in a imely manner,

Receive reports from the CFO with regards to procurement contracts in line with the Scheme of Deiegation.

Education Committee

Meetings ~ the cormmittee will meet at least half-termly {prior to meetings of the Trust Board}

Quorum — at least 3 Trustees

Chair and Vice Chair — appainted annually, at the first meeting of a new school year

Roles and Responsibilities:

The Education Committee will review and evaluate educational performance (both actual and projected
results) of each school and tier.

Receive an annual report frem each school on attainment and progress of pupils in national tests and
exams, with interim reports on current performance. Reports to also include provision and outcomes for
particular groups of pupils, including looked after children, by gender, race, special educational needs, the
most able, disabilities and deprivation. Schools will be required to present reports in a key performance
indicators {(KPi) document to ensure consistency of reporting.

School performance Including indicators of the quality of curriculum, teaching, learning, and assessment [o
be presented to the Trust Board In an easily accessible format to enable comparison of the performance of
schools across the MAT.

Undertake an annual check lo ensure that all schools across the MAT have statutory policies in place that
continue to comply with national guidance, including in pasticular policies relating to child protection,
safeguarding and Prevent.

Review and evaluate education policies that are applicable fo the Trust Board.

The Education Committee will set up a Raising Achievement Board (RAB) where there is educational cause
for concern. The Education Committee will ask the Headteacher to present a plan to rectify
underperformance and to explain the plan, in person, to & specially convened meeling. The RAB will be
made up of suitably qualified people able to fulfil this function.

Ensure that each school provides its pupils with a curriculum that shows breadth, depth, progression and is
accessible to all learners.

Receive a report from each school governing board with regards to their annual review.

Receive updates through the CEO on schoo! leadership and management arrangements and changes of
leadership staffing, including governors.,

Ensure effeclive independent and impartial careers advice is provided across the Trust schools and
accurately measure the progress and destination of all leavers.

Receive reports and evaluate issues relating fo pupil behaviour and discipline, including rewards and
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management {continued)

sanctions, bullying, internet bullying and exclusions.

« Recsive and investigate any whistleblowing allegations relating to educational issues.

» Review any parental complaints made against individual schools that have been referred by the Trust Board.

« Receive reports on and challenge the provision and effectiveness of staff training, performance management
and staff welfare.

+ To ensure that all trustees have access o appropriate training courses to enable them to fulfil their roles and
responsibilities.

+ Provide the Trust Board with information as requested in a timely manner.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnei

The arrangements for setting the pay and remuneration of all the personnetl of the Academy Trust are subject to
the school teachers pay and conditions document. The determination of leadership pay is in line with the schoo!
grotp slze and relevant scale points attributed to the group pay range. Recommendations for headteacher and
executive headteacher pay increases is made by the CEO, with the support of the local governing board the pay
of the CEQ is determined by the Trust Board and pay is reviewed annually. Incremental rises are dependent
upon the successful completion of the previeus years' performance management cycle. Recommendations for
pay increases for all other members of staff are made by the local governing boards.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 3
Full-time equivalent employee number 2

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees

0% 3

1%-50% -

51%-99% -

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £

Total cost of facility time -

Total pay bill 12,962,657

Perceniage of total pay bill spent on facility time - %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union aclivities as a percentage of total paid facility time - %
hours
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The members, Board of Trustees, local govemning board members and the Accounting Officer all complete a
pecuniary interest declaration on an annual basis and from September 2020 continue to update on an on-going
basis. This declaration sets out any relationship with the Academy Trust that is not directly related to their duties
within these rales. Each individual is also required to declare a potential ‘confiict of interest’ if it arises between
such declarations. Once a declaration has been made, the individual concerned takes no further part in any
decision relating to the matter declared.

M. Prescott, chair of a local governing board, is a director and shareholder of Michael Prescott Education
Services Limited. During the period the Trust purchased services from Michael Prescott Education Services
Limited amounting to £452 {2022 - £1,711) to review aspects of teaching and learning within two of the schools,
The balance outstanding at the end of the period was £Nil {2022 - £Nil).

O Crooks, member of a local governing board, is a director and shareholder of Sporting PB Lid. During the
period the Trust purchased setvices from Sporting PB Lid amounting to £2,355 (2022 - £Nil} to provide lunchtime
activities within ane of the schools. The balance outstanding at the end of the period was £Nil (2022 - £Nil). In
addition they also hired the premises at two of our schools paying £415 (2022 £Nil). The balance outstanding at
the end of the pericd was £Nil (2022 - £Nil).

j- Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

The CEO aftends termly meetings with the JNCC, which includes local representatives from trade unions and
professional associations, This means that employees are provided with information and feedback regarding
matters that are of concern 1o them, as weli as the Trust Leadership team receiving guidance and feedback from
the relevant assoclations. The annual Trust wide ‘Light up Uttoxeter training day' provides opportunity for cross
working between schools and evaluation of training activities. Headteachers are provided with information and
networking apporiunities at the regular headteachers professional boards, and also with Chairs of Governors at
the School Representation Board.

k. Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy Trust

The Trust continues to build relationships with Entrust through SLAs which include guidance in relation to GDPR
and support for Governors. Tha Trust also worked with Entrust in relation to the development of the new free
school which opened 06 September 2022. Headteachers continue to build parinerships through stakeholder
groups such as the East Staffordshire Heads and Middle schools forum.

The Trust has introduced MSP Support for ICT across the Trust with one provider providing support for the First
Schools (CoRE Educational Ltd) and another supporting the Middle Schools (E-volve IT Support). The High
School continues to receive support from their own technicians.

The Trust is also currently working with Surveyors 2 Education to provide Condition Surveys for al the schools in
the MAT and support the acadermies In preparing CIF bids for submission in this year's round of bids.
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Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Objectives and activities

Purpose and Principles
Uttoxeter Learning Trust — Mission, Vision and Values — September 2020 ‘Inspired Teaching, Inspiring Children’
Our Mission

Our purpuse is to provide an inspiring education for our young people that supports them to reach their fuli
potential and become well rounded, successful citizens.

Qur Visfon

Our vision is to grow our family of schools, and our pupil and staff community, within Uttoxeter and beyond, to
provide an outstanding education and become one of the leading Multi-Academy Trusts in the country,

About Uttoxeter Learning Trust

Through our common purpose and values, we offer an inspiring curriculum that allows our young people to
develop both persenally and academically.

We do this by inspiring pupils through inspired teaching. We empower young people to realise their potential and
surpass their own expectations from Early Years to Post 16, imparting the knowledge, skifls and behaviours to
ensure they are fit for the future.

Our all-through schools network enables the ideal transition between phases of education, supporting high levels
of progress and inclusivity, At the same time, all our schools have an independence that allows them to best
setve their communities, supported by delegation of a range of powers to our local governing boards,

As a growing Trust we are supporting our schools to excel through a strong central team, in addition to
Governors, Trustees and Members who offer a variety of experience and expertise.

By working with employers and higher education providers we enrich learning opportunities and secure
competitive destinations for pupils when they leave our care.

We focus on on-going evaluation and improvement, collaborating between schools and drawing en expertise
both within and external to the Trust to ensure the best education, professional development, and value for
money.

Qur Core Values
We want our young people to be happy, caring, respectful and high achieving.

We believe that by working together to innovale teaching and learning we can inspire and release the potential of
every child and young person.

We create an inclusive community where everyone is welcome whatever their beliefs, gender, age, sexuality,
disability and race, so that no child is teft behind.

We provide civilized and safe educational environments where children and young people can learn how 1o
hbecome good citizens.

Our staff are professional, caring and collaborative, treating colleagues and pupils with generosity of spirt.
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For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Objectives and activities {continued)

a. Aims and Objectives of the Trust

Qur aim is for our schools, both faith and non-faith, to share good practice, meeting the needs of our young
people, our communities and our global society.

Qur objectives are to:

*

Cultivate and value the achievements and positive attitudes of our young people whilst keeping them safe
and well, ensuring equality and celebrating diversity.

Use expertise across the Trust fo innovate teaching and learning to be at the forefront of educational
practice and a self-improving organisation, preparing pupils for the changing world of work.

To continue to develop our school community through dissemination of good practice and interdependence
Develop a central team that offers expertise in many areas, supporting schools to bulld or their performance
and ensure accountability and value for money.

Strengthen partnerships with external agencies, charifies, local communities, and business to ensure that
the education within the Trust is supported by a broad curmriculum offer which promotes STEM as well as
creativity, Janguages and humanifies, and narrows the performance gap between groups of students.
Develop and retain strong leadership through on-going professional development supported by the teaching
school, succession planning and addressing workload and the well-being of our workforce.

b. Strategy
Shart Term: First Six Years — What have we already achieved?

-

Conversion lo multi academy status was phased, starting with a group of three schools, including the high
school, a middle school and the largest, local first school, all of which converted in April 2017; the second
cohort converted In January and April 2018, and included the two rural first schools and & third Uttoxeter
middle school.

The ULT was granted Teaching School status, offering opporiunities for training, professionat development,
leadership and research across the region and wider, Qur Teaching Schoot created numerous additional
school improvement opportunities for all. Although this closed in 2021, we now access training opportunities
through the Teaching School hub.

We introduced our associate membership offer, which supported a local first school; this school fs now
formally part of the Trust. .

We continue to audit the evidence of current performance to ensure that all schools continue to provide at
jeast a ‘good’ standard of education so that there is the capacity to support and challenge each other in the
future.

We have expanded our work as strategic partners in local Teaching School Alfiances to supplement our
capacity, including Keele University.

We review and share best educational practice across the MAT and put in place action plans to sustain
improvement through a mode! of collaboration,

We review and share the best management and organisational practices, including seeking best value for
money through improvements in ecanomy, efficiency and effectiveness and ensure that every academy can
set a sustainable budget.

We have developed good working refationships with external agencies including the Regional Schools
Commissioner team, the Lichfield Diocese and other local schools who are not part of the ULT.

We have successfully navigated the temporary period where the Trust could have been without a CEO by
sourcing an interim 1o cover the intermediary period.

liaison with other Trusts has supported the develfopment of shared working on shared sites, as
demonstrated between Ryecroft CofE Middle school and the Dove First school, which is an academy
member of Staffordshire University Academy Trust {SUAT). Prior lo her departure, the full time CEO
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Objectives and activities (continued)

established links to the Ark Academies Trust as part of the Dfe's Trust to Trust development programme.
We have built 2 new Free School. Bramshall Meadows First School, which opened 06 September 2022 and
has places for 150 pupils, age 4 to 9, and nursery age children,

Training opportunities have been provided for subject leaders to develop in their role, and this continues to
evolve.

All of our schools have been judged by Ofsted andfor SIAMS to be at least Good.

Medium Term: 7 - 8 Years — Next Steps

We will continue o grow as an effective self-improving school system, sharing our expertise and successes
and developing further our resources and capacity in order to support each other and any external
educational partners.

We will ensure that the Trust provides an effective school improvement offer so that all leaders feel
supported and challenged to make their schools the best they can be.

Aftainment and progress figures for children in every school will be above national averages and will

compare welf against those of similar schools.

L]

There will be @ smoath, well planned transition between different phases of education to help children to
build on prior learning.

All schools will continue be judged at least ‘good’ by Ofsted and or SIAMS.

The new Free School will continue to recruit coharts after opening in September 2022.

We will engage with the local teaching hub model and develop our Trust CPD model.

We will ensure the effectiveness of small institutions by promoting closer working relationships between
them, and explore joint leadership and management arrangements, where appropriate and agreed.

We will continue to grow in pupil numbers as a Trust, including welcoming pariner schools/academies from
outside the immediate Uttoxeter area, subject fo successful due diligence findings.

We will continue to review and strengthen the central team to provide an excellent level of service and value
for money.

Longer term: 7+ Years

Al of our current schools will be performing in the top 20% nationally when compared with similar
academies.

Inspections of our schools will show that all children are receiving, at the very least, a good standard of
education, with some achieving a grading of outstanding.

The school improvement madel will be well established to help schools to recognise where they can further
improve and to offer the support to help them to achieve this.

Schools will see the Trust as an attractive option to join due to the well established systems of support and
track record of improvement.

Corttinue to develop and embed strategic governance and strong {inancial management

The Trust will have a well defined support mechanism for pupils identified as SEND, including access to
resources to help schools to support children in their own environment.
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Objectives and activities {continued)

LEARKING TRUST

The ULT has an unwavering insistence that all children in our schools will be happy, healthy, safe and ready for
the next stage of education and beyond. We provide learning for life!
Our ULT motto encompasses all ~ 'Insplred teaching, inspiring children.’

Equal Oppertunities

The Trust is committed to employment policies which follow best practice based on equal opportunities for all
employees irrespective of sex, race, colour, disability or marital status. The Trust gives full and fair consideration
to applications for employment fram disabled persons having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities.

c. Public benefit

The Trustees confirm we work within the guidance contained in the Charity Commissioner's general guidance on
public benefit when reviewing the Academy Trust objective and aims and in planning future activities for the
period. The Trustees consider that the Academy Trust can clearly demonsltrate that its aims are to advance
education for public benefit.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Progress oh our 12 Months Strategic Objectives September 22 — August 23

« Objective: To create a strategic central team that aflows schools to focus on school improvement, with
support and challenge provided to help aspire to be the best
Progress: Trustees worked hard to determine roles centrally that would improve the efficient organisation of
the Trust. As a result, the Central Team was expanded during the year through the appointment of a Health
and Safety and Premises Lead. The coileague appointed took the decision to leave the Trust not leng after
joining and this coincided with a change of CEO. Conseguently, the Central Team was reconsidered and an
alternative mode! created. Trustees are in the process of appointing into these roles at the end of the
reporting year.

+ Objective: To work with school leaders to identify and action any underperformance within all performance
information to maximise pupil progress as they move through the Trust
Progress: All schools have worked with the CEQ to ensure that appropriate actions have been identifled to
increase achievemnent within their schools. Collaborative work has been undertaken to share best practice
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Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance {continued)

and to help improve specific aspects, for example, the development of mathematics through the first and
middle schools.

« Objective: To grow the Trust by working with other local schoals, with a view to them joining the Trust in due
course.
Progress: The Trust have held conversations with school leaders, governing bodies, the local authority, and
the DfE over the vear to explore options for growth. Where schools have then gone on to express a greater
interest in joining, further conversations and due diligence meetings have taken place. The Trust Board have
agreed to proceed, in principle, with one refatively large high school to join the Trust. This work will continue
into next year.

» Objective: To ensure that the Trust offers value for money so that schools can focus their resources on
helping children to receive the best possible education.
Progress: School Business managers and finance staff continue to meet reguiarly to share best practice and
to work togsther to get value for money from joint tenders. Further work has taken place centrally this year to
consider how the top sfice funding can be used to better support schools and a plan is in place to bring more
service level agreements ‘in-house’ to free up this aspect for school leaders, although implementation will
take time.

= Objective: To work with leaders to ensure that every academy can set a sustainable budget.
Progress: This is an ongoing objective due to funding difficulties nationally. At this peint, all 9 schools
continue to work on measures to ensure that budgets are sustainable for the future.

s Objective: We will develop good working relationships with the Lichfield Dioccese, the Local Authority, the
Regional Schools Commissioner team and with other lecal schools.
Progress: ULT staff have regular meetings and worked constructively with all of the stakeholders above and
have worked hard to maintain  both contact and pasitive relationships through a period of change internally
and externally,

«  Objective: To ensure that wellbeing of pupils and staff is paramount to all of our work, and the approach to
safeguarding, prevent and personal development is of the highest quality.

« Progress: Safeguarding continues to be, and will always be, a priority of the Trust. Al meetings include
safeqguarding as an agenda ilem and colleagues know that support is available should any issues arise,
External support has been sourced to audit and support with particular aspects of safeguarding and Trustee
checks of the single central record have helped to rationalize the process to become more robust and
efficient. External quality assurance visits, for example, through inspection, have found safeguarding o be
effective. The wellbeing of staff also remains of high importance. Colleagues know that there is support from
pears and the central team. The staff wellbeing survey will be revisited in the autumn term to ensure that the
guestions are fit for purpose to help the Trust better understand where there is a need for support.

a. Key performance indicators
Overall Effectiveness:
Alf schools were judged ‘Good' or ‘Outstanding’ in their most recent Ofsted inspections.

Pupit Attainment and Progress
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Aggregated attainment data for the Trust shows that pupils perform above national in the majority of areas, and
broadly in-ling in others. However, individual school performance highlights differences in attainment data for end
of Key Stage results.

At the end of EYFS the Trust figures ranged from 69% to 79% for a good level of development, and the overall
percentage was 75%. This is positive when compared to the most recent national data set (2022) of 65%.

For the end of Key Stage 1, ali schools were in line with or above the 2023 national figure in reading. The
aggregated trust figure is well above the national figure (77% compared to 68%). The same is also true for
mathematics, although one school did fall just below the nationat figure. The aggregated data showing that 78%
of Uttoxeter Learning Trust pupils attained at the expected standard or above compared to the national figure of
70%. Writing data was more variable, with two schools falling below the national figure of 60%. The aggregated
figure for ULT children is still above this at 63%.

School wide figures for greater depth follow a simitar pattern to that for children reaching the expecied standard,
with writing the weakest of the three areas. Comparisons to national data will be made once this is available.

At Key Stage 2, as a Trust attainment exceeds the 2023 national figures for all indicators at expected standard.
Howaver, there are variations between individual schools, with one school falling beiow the national figure in

each individual area.

At Key Stage 4 the school's Progress 8 figure (the reiative progress of our students in eight subjects, compared
to students wilth similar levels of attainment at the end of primary school) was -0.08, meaning that students
perform in-fine with their peers nationally. The school's Altainment 8 figure (the raw score achieved by our
students in the same eight subjects) was 45.1. 18% of our students entered the Ebacc (2 government measure
which means students took all of English, maths, sciences, a language, and history or geography GCSE) and the
Ebacc average point score {our students’ average score in the same Ebacc subjects) was 3.7. 95% of our
students are reported to have stayad in education or employment after Year 11. The percentage of our students
achieving a grade 5 or higher in both English and Maths GCSEs was 35%.

Al Key Stage 5, the average grade was C+ for A levels (which is below the national average of B-} and distinction
for vocational qualifications (which is in-line with the national average result).

Schools analyse their own dala and generate suitable actions to improve in specific areas. Heads and Chairs of
Governors attend some of the meetings of the Board of Trustees and Education and Finance and Audit
Committees where they are challenged and held to account, as well as supported and congratulated. Support is
then provided throughout the year to help ensure that actions are having the desired impact on future attainment.

Pupil Attendance
Attendance af the majority of schools remains above national averages.

Pupil Numbers
Current demagraphics show an increase in the number of new housing developments and children living in the

area. This increase is now starting to benefit all schools. Most schools still remain under PAN, however, pupil
rolls are beginning to rise in the next 2-3 years and will increase significantly over the next 10 years according to
Local Authority projections.
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Strategic report {continued}
Achievements and performance {continued}

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies.

The Trustees have considered:

+ the impact of the unfunded pay rises to both Teaching and Support Staff.
» the impact on the increase in energy costs and the rise of other none staff costs
+ the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Trust

¢. Promoting the success of the company

The Trust took the decision to consult in 2019 - 22 with regard to redundancy benefits, in order to ensure the
long- term financial viability of the Trust. Business relationships continue to be developed with suppliers, and in
light of the COVID-19 pandemic now includes PPE suppliers, and increased interaction with cleaning and
catering service suppliers as well as agencies supplying staff to cover absence due to Trust staff self-isolation.
The Trust also took the decision to review the vision, mission and values statement early in 2020 {o ensure that
key messages are shared with and understood by all stakeholders.

Financial review

After facing increased staffing, cleaning and PPE costs as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic academies are
now facing increased costs from recent pay awards and rise in energy costs. Therefore, the schools are having
to make savings against budget headings. All schools are suffering from the demographic dip in births and are
low in terms of pupl numbers. From 2018/19, pupll numbers have started {o increase as higher numbers come
through from First Schools and as a result of new house builds in the area although progress maybe slowed by
the effect of COVID-19 on the construction industry and the housing market. County Council projections show a
gradual and significant increase in pupil numbers over the next 10 years. However, these increases may be
offset by the increase in admissions in nearby schools. The opening of a new secondary school in an adjacent
area in September 2018 and JCB academy accepting Yr3 children all pose potential risks. The ULT risk register
is updated half termly and reviewed by all Trustee sub committees 6 times & year.

All schools have a positive carry-forward from the previous year, but this is being used to set the current year's
budget, The schools are all working towards an in-year balance in which the allocated income al least matches
the annual expenditure. The reserves are being used to underwrite the transition to in-year balances.

Additional costs due to COVID-19 continue 1o be tracked and monitored.

Income for the period was £18,101,806 of which £16,452,627 was provided by the Department of Education
(DfE) via the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) by means of standard grants to cover operational and
capital costs. This was supplemented by local authority funding, donations and other trading activities including
third party lettings and funds generated by extended school activities which totaled the remaining £1,649,179.

All expenditure supports the Academy Trust key objectives to deliver quality education to our pupils and
community. Expenditure for the period was £18,021,922 with the largest element of this expenditure being
atiributed to staff costs totalling £12,962,657 for the period. The depreciation charge on assets of £1,205,931
has been included. Net income for the period was £79,884.
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The Academy Trust element of the Staffordshire Pension fund that forms part of the Local Government Pension
Scheme was valued at 31 August 2023, showing a net deficit of £724,000.

As at 31 August 2023, the net book value of fixed asseis was £29,645,056 and the movement in tangible fixed
assets are shown in Note 14 of the financial stalements. The assets were used exclusively in providing
education and the associated support services to the pupils across the ULT. The ULT complies with the
principles of financial control as outlined in the Academy Trust Handbook and the Accounts Direction. The
financial procedures, Scheme of Delegation and Value for Money statement together with systems of financial
control ensure that the ULT conforms to the requirements of propriety, regularity and sound financial
management,

The Board of Trustees is accountable for the allocation of resources to meet the objectives set out in the ULT
Improvement Plan. The Accounling Officer together with the Finance and Audit Committee and CFO are
responsible for reviewing the financial procedures on an annual basis and recommending approval to the main
Board of Trustees. Individual school budgets are monitored on a monthly basis with reports and commentary on
income and expenditure against budget provided to the Finance and Audit Commillee at their hall termly
meetings and reported to the Board of Trustees meetings the following week.

a. Reserves policy

POLICY STATEMENT:

Uttaxeter Learning Trust will carry forward a prudent level of reserves designed to meet long-term educational
and estate needs and any other unforeseen contingencies. Such reserves will be subject to the constraint that
the level of reserves does not exceed the fevels permitted by the DIE and ESFA. The Trust will also retain a %
of EFA funding from the General Annual Grant received by schools in order to provide high quality central
services and value for money.

PURPOSE AND SCOPE:

Maintaining an appropriate level of financial reserves is considered essential in protecting the Trust from financial
risk generated by, for example:

income reduction due to Government funding changes
unexpected falis in student numbers

cash flow issues due to delays in receipt of funding
emergencies

* 2 & @

In general, it is considered prudent to maintain a level of useable reserves sufficient to cover unexpected and
unplanned events so that each individual establishment's primary objective is preserved. At the same time,
establishments need to ensure that they use their funding to benefit the students in their care which implies a
need to actively consider the use of reserves o enhance educational provision.

This policy sets out the circumstances under which individual school and the Central Trust may use reserves for
the benefit of the pupils and establishments within the Trust. it alsc provides guidelines about the expected
levels of reserves at school and Trust level.

The policy also sets out the arrangements for Trust Central costs. The Trust will normally retain up to 5% of the
EFA (GAG) funding from each of the schools fo spend on agreed central activities. The top-slice is determined
by the Trust Board and reviewed annually. The Board reserves the right to make a charge of up to 7% for any
academies in Ofsted Requires Improvement/Special Measures categories that join the Trust.
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ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

The Trust Board is responsible for approving this policy and ensuring it is applied consistently across the Trust,
The board is respansible for the annual review and approval the top-slice charged to schools.

The CEQ and CFO are responsible for ensuring that individual schools adhere to this policy and agree an action
plan where necessary. They are responsible for the effective deployment of central resources o enable the
Trust to deliver effective services and education across the MAT and advising the Trust Board.

The Local Governing Bodies and Executive Headteachers / Headteachers are responsible for the effective
deployment of resources to enable the school to deliver effeclive education wilhin their setting which falls within
their allocated annual funding.

The Business Managers/CFQ are responsible for monitoring the level of reserves held by theirfall
establishment(s) and advising Headteachers and Local Governing Bodies.

AlM:
The aim of this Reserves and Charging Policy is to:

identfy the level of reserves to be held by individual settings

detail the process required to request use of reserves

give examples of use of reserves which the Trust do not deem acceptable
give examples of when it would be prudent to make use of reserves

detail the process by which the top-slice is reviewed and determined

give examples of the use of the top slice

L] L] L ] - . &

RESERVE LEVELS:

The Board of Trustees require a revenue reserve to be created to fund future expenditure refated to the Trust's
strategic long-term aims and developments. Schools are expecled to contribute towards reserves from their
General Annual Grant {GAG) funding or other income at a rate of between 2-5% every year; the specific % wil
be set by the Finance & Audit Committee. This contribution will be added to schools accumulated reserves to
support in future years, which will be capped at 5% of GAG,

Trustees will monitor levels of reserves in financial reports provided by the CFO and in the annual financial
statement prepared by the Auditor. Trustees will look to ensure that a prudent level of reserves is maintained,
bearing in mind the recurrent spending needs to ensure high quality provision. In deciding the level of reserves
Trustees will take into account the following:

« the establishment's annual budget

+ the need for any large project spend such as faciliies development or building condition needs

« any uncertainty, turbulence or expected reduction in funding arrangements, including the level of transitional
protection within the establishment funding and its expiry date

+ anticipated funding over the next three years

s the need for the establishment to maintain delivery of the curriculum

Trustees recognise that maintained schoals or single academy trusts who join the Trust may not initially have the
level of reserves we would recommend. In these circumstances the school will be expected to build up a
sufficient leve! of reserves within 2 years of joining the Trust.
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PROCEDURE FOR USE OF RESERVES:

Where an establishment has sufficient reserves, they should In the first instance discuss any proposed spend
with the CEO, CFO and Chair of the local governing body at the budget review which occurs in the spring term.
Schools may then be asked to document this process for which the form at Appendix A should be completed,
which will then be considered for final approval by the Finance and Audit committee.

There may be circumstances when the establishment does not have sufficient reserves 1o cover expenditure
which may be required for emergency works. In the first instance assistance should be sought from the ESFA to
the Condition Improvement Fund.

Any successful application for CIF is usually agreed with a 10% contribution from the schoo! which will need fo
be budgeted for. The Trust may therefore agree that & school may loan required monies from within the Trust
reserves and any such loan agreement will be interest free and repaid against a robust repayment plan. Schoots
wishing to apply for a loan from Trust reserves should complete the form at Appendix B.

UNACCEFTABLE USE OF RESERVES:

Schools should not use reserves to supplement their annual budget. This is not deemed sustainable over a
period of time and in the current financial climate it is imperative that establishments staff accordingly and within
their annual budget. There may be some circumstances where use of reserves for staffing is deemed to be
necessary and as such a request should be submitted to the CEO and CFO.

ACCEPTABLE USE OF RESERVES

Permitted examples of use of reserves are shown below however this list is not exhaustive:

Capital projects for which reserves have been spedifically accumulated

Staffing where pupil numbers temporarily dip and the school has planned reserves accordingly

SEND related provision

Safeguarding related issues

Security of estate related projects

School improvement related spend — in particular where a school has an Ofsted judgement {or possibility of)
to improve,

e Health & Safety issues

* & & ¢+ & ¥

TRUST CENTRAL COSTS:

Trust central costs may be used to support schools with capacity and or services. Examples include the
foilowing:

Salaries of Trust central employees

Central Services such as banking, fegal, HR, auditors, licenses, catering, cleaning, and grounds
Central Pracurement of resources, materials, software, and photo-copying

PR and Marketing

Externat Reviews and school improvement services

Subscriptions

Training

[ 2 R BEE BN B O

Any reserves held are in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Master Funding Agreement and by
the Education & Skills Funding Agency. The level of reserves held takes into account the nature of income and
expenditure streams, the need to match them to commitments, including future capital projects, and the need to
maintain sufficient reserves to cover any unexpected urgent expenditure requirements, especially to buildings
repair not coversd by insurance. The Board of Trustees will review the level of reserves and Charging and
Reserves policy annually.
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As at 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust has reserves of £34,008,182 with unrestricted funds of £1,641,095 and
restricted funds of £32,467,087. The ULT has continued to be cautious in its spending over the period which has
seen an increase in particular costs around Covid-19 and expenditure incurred to ensure all achools can remain
open and provide a safe environment for staff and students.

Our reserve policy specifies a preferred value for individual schools to held in reserves (5%). The top slice was
increased to 4% from January 2023. Therefore, reserves have been utilised to help to balance budgets in the
short-term whilst working towards in-year budgetary balances before reserves are depleted. Some of our schools
are holding higher than normal levels of reserves to help finance future building projects including contributions
to future CIF Bids.

b. Investment policy
Purpose and scope

The purpose of the Investments Policy is to set out the processes by which ULT Trustees wilt meet their duties
under the ULT Articles of Association and Academies Financial Handbook issued by the EFA to invest monies
surplus to operational requirements in furtherance of the ULT charitable aims and to ensure that investment risk
is properly and prudently managed.

Definition of duties

The ULT Articles gives Trustees the power “to expend the funds of the ULT in such manner as they shall
consider most beneficial for the achievement of the Objects and to invest in the name of the ULT such part of the
funds as they may see fit and to direct the sale or transposition of any such investments and to expend the
proceeds of any such sale in furtherance of the Objects.”

Whilst the Board of Trustees has responsibility for the ULT finances, the Scheme of Delegation delegates
responsibility to the ULT Finance and Audit Committee:

To approve the Investments Policy to manage, control and track financial exposure, and ensure value for money,
to review the Trust's investments and investment policy on a regular basis.

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for producing reliable cash flow forecasts as a basis for decision
making. S/he responsible for making investment decisions that comply with this Policy and for providing
sufficient management information to the ULT Finance and Audit Commitiee so it can review and monitor
investment performance.

Objectives
The investment objectives are:

« to achieve best financial return available whilst ensuring that security of deposits takes precedence over
revenue maximisation.

« only invest funds surplus to operational need based on all financial commitments being met without the ULT
bank account becoming overdrawn,

» by complying with this policy, all investment decisions should be exercised with care and skill and
consequently be in the best interests of the ULT, commanding broad public support.

investment strategy

Investment risk will be managed through asse! class selection and diversification to ensure that security of
deposits takes precedence over revenue maximisation.

For selection, assets will only be considered with banking institutions which have credit ratings assessed by Fiich
and Moody to show good credit quality.
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To manage the risk of default, deposits should be spread across PRA-authorised banking institutions and
subject to a maximum exposure of £500,000 to any one institution. Whilst this exceeds the protection limit of
£85,000 provided by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS), it is accepted that it is not always
practicable to find a suitable number of institutions with which to place deposits of this size that meet the prudent
criteria outlined in this policy.

Spending and liquidity policy

Decisions on how much to invest and how long fo invest for, will be based on operational requirements,
demonstrated by cash flow forecasts produced by the Chief Finance Officer. The cash flow forecasts will take
account of the annual budget and spending plans approved by the ULT Finance and Audit Committee and
updated on a monthly basis.

A sufficient balance must be held in the current account so that the ULT financial commitments can always be
met without the bank account going overdrawn. The size of the balance will be determined by a forecast of future

need and kept under review.

Investrments for a fixed term should not normally exceed one year in order to provide flexibifity for the following
year's plans, unless a clear rationale is provided for exceeding one year to the benefit of the ULT.

Monitoring and review

The ULT has authorised signalories, twe of which are required to sign instructions to the deposit taking
institution,

The Chief Finance Officer will monitor the cash position and cash flow forecast and report investments held and
the performance of investments against objectives to the ULT Finance and Audit Committee at appropriate
intervals, depending on the terms of the investments.

For example, if investments are held one year then an annuaf report is appropriate.

This Investment Policy has been approved by the ULT Finance and Audit Committee. It will be reviewed by the
ULT Finance and Audit Committee on an annual basis to ensure continuing appropriateness.

For the periad of September 2022 to August 2023, no investments were made.
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c. Principal risks and uncertainties

A review of the principal risks highlights the financial risk involved in the reliance on Government funding and the
limited influence of the Academy Trust on the level and future of this funding. Immediate risks relating to pupil
numbers have bean highlighted above. Other risks include competition for pupils from other local schools,
particularly in the secondary sector. The current mechanism to fund the 3 tier system is also a risk.

The deficit on the Local Government Pension Scheme of £724,000 presents a concern. However, Parliament
has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to guarantee that in the event of academy
clasure, outstanding local government pension scheme liability would be met by the Department for Education.
This guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

The unfunded additional costs in relation fo energy and pay 2023 — 2024,

Competition from UTC JCB still poses a risk to numbers on roli with admissions at Year 9 and Year 12. A new
primary school, which is being set up by John Taylor Multi Academy Trust, opened September 2022 at Tattenhill
is situated in the caichment area of the John Tayfor Free School.

Fundraising

All fundraising carried out across the MAT conforms to recognised standards to raise funds for either charity
causes or to fundraise to help specific projects.

It is the decision of each local school committee to establish and monitor any charitable fund raising groups at
locat level.

The schools will occasionaily have ‘non-uniform' days where students have the option to not wear their uniform
for one day and will contribute £1 towards either a specific charity or to help to raise funds for a specific schoo!
project.

We are unaware of any fundralsing complaints and unaware of there being any unreasconable intrusive or
persistent fundraising approaches or any undue pressure to donate.

The Academy Trust does not use any external fundraisers. All fundraising undertaken during the year was
monitored by local governing boards.
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Streamlined energy and carbon reporting
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Streamiined energy and carbon reperting {continued)

Quantification and Reporting Methodclogy:

Preparation of this report included reference to the HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines and the
GHG reporting. All the conversion factors where obtained from the Government conversion factors; ‘Greenhouse
gas reporting: conversion factors 2020° or the “2020 managed assets vehicles, conversion factors.”

Intensity measurement: -

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve efficiency: -

The pandemic resulted for some of the previous period schools being cnly open for key critical worker children
and no school lettings which saw a reduction in usage in the second part of the year. In addition, schools have
moved to video conferencing for all meetings and {raining for staff, reducing the need for travel. A hybrid
approach to meetings has continues with some face to face and some virtual.

Also, for the same reason, all sporting fixtures and educational visits were cancelled so the school minibus was
not being used for six menths during the previous reporting period.

Plans for future periods

The Strategy for the Medium Term {4-5 years) and Longer Term (6+ years) are outlined above in the Objectives
and Activities section.

Disclosure of Information to auditors

insofar as the Trustees are aware;

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken fo make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

The Trustees' Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
companydirectors, on 12 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr S M Slater
Chair of Trustees
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Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowiedge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Uttoxeter Learning Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or joss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance,

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility tc the CEQ, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreemert between

Uttoxeter Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the
Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible

Mr S M Slater, Chair of Trustees 6 6
Rev M J Sherwin 6 6
Ms M P Livesey 4 6
Dr VS Bennetl 1 1
Mr S Harper 3 6
Mr C Haswell 6 6
Mr S M Pearce 4 6
Mrs P D Hunt 3 4
Ms J A Wheeidon 1 2

The Trust Board has continued to assess its own effectiveness by identifying gaps in experience through
completion of skills audits. During 2022 — 2023 one Trustee resigned; Dr VS Bennett. Two Trustees have since
been recruited, Mrs P Hunt and Mrs J Wheeldon. In addition to educational performance measures, the Board
receives termly KPI reports on a range of indicators from all of the schools in the Trust,

The trust manages conflicts of interest by maintaining an up-to-date and complete register of interests which is
reviewed throughout the year. Every meeting there is an opportunity to disclose those interests related {o items
on the agenda. Al Governors and Trustees also read and sign up to a Trustee and Governor Code of Conduct
which is reviewed annuaily.

The Uttoxeter Learning Trust commissioned an independent external review of governance 2022 - 23 as part of
a wider programme of self-assessment and improvement in subseqguent years,
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Governance (continued)

The Finance and Audit Committee has formally met 6 times during the year.

Attendance during the year af meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr S Harper 4 8
Mr S Slater 6 6
Mr C Haswell (Committee Vice Chair) 5 6
Mr S Pearce {Cormmittee Chair) 5 6
Mrs J Wheeldon 1 2

The Education Committee has formally met 6 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of
the committee was as follows:

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustes Meetings attended Out of a possible

Rev M Sherwin (Committee Chair} 6 6
Mrs P Livesey 4 6
Mr S Slater B 6
Mrs P Hunt 1 4

The work of the Trust has included:

« Continuing to audit the evidence of current performance to ensure that most schools continue lo provide at
least a good standard of education so that there is the capacity to suppert any vulnerable schools.

s Expanding our work as strategic partners in local Teaching School Alliances to supplement this capacity and
develop good working relaticnships with the Lichfield Diocese, the Local Authority, the Regional Schools
Commissioner team and with other local schools

» Review and share best educational practice across the MAT and put in place action plans to sustain
improvement (and to rectify any underperformance and underachievement through our Raising Achievement
Board).

« Review and share the best management and organisational practices, including seeking best value for
money through improvements in economy, efficiency and effectiveness

« Ensure that every academy can set a sustainable budget.

» Expand the size of the Trust through the recruitment of associate members and supporting such partners to
become academisas.
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Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEQ has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good valus for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy
Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

1. Robust governance and oversight of the Trust's finance

As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control. |
am informed by the internal audit service (Staffordshire Audit Service) - commissioned by the Finance and
Audit Committee — who undertake reviews of key financial policies, procedures and their implementation.
Reports are produced which detail the individual academies compliance and demonstrate that the individual
academies and the Trust have robust systems and financial controls in place. These reports are presented fo
the Local Governing bodies who provide a response to the matters raised and identify next steps. These
reports and action plans are presented to the Finance and Audit Committee for review and identification if any
further actions are required.

The MAT Board approves the budgel each year and is mindful of the need to balance expenditure against
income to ensure the Trust and the individual academies remain a going concern. The MAT Board also
receives and approves the Statutory Accounts and the External Auditor's Management Report.

2. Review Controls and Manage Risks

A risk register is reviewed at every meeting by the Trust and financial risk is reviewed further by the Finance and
Audit Committes, The risk register details aspects of procedure and practice that contains risk, the extent of the
impact should the risk manifest, the lkelihood of the Trust's exposure to such an incidence and the control
mechanisms in place to mitigate likelthood and impact. The review entails assessing whether :

Have any risks recorded on the register materialised?

Are there any new risks that have been added since?

Are there any risks that have been removed as no longer applicable since the previous review?

Have there been any adjustments to the control procedures detailed in the register since the previous
review?

po gD

3. Ensuring value for money is achieved and resources are used efficiently and effectively

The staffing structures of the Trust's academies are reviewed annually by the Local Governing Bodies of each
Academy assisted by integrated curricuium financial planning tools and staffing is deployed to drive and support
curriculum deliver, intervention initiatives and wider school improvement. Targeted and restricted funding {eg.
Pupil Premium, Covid Catch up Premium and Sports Premium) is deployed in accordance with criteria
associated with it.

Contracts and services are regularly appraised and renegotiated to ensure value for money. During the year
reviews of catering have taken place.
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The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The systemn of internal control is based on an on-going process designed 1o identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, 1o evaluate the
likelinood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Uttoxeter Learning Trust for the
year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements.

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Acaderny Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks, The Board of
Trustees Is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financiat statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trusiees.

The risk and control framework
The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountabllity. In particutar, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees

. regular reviews by the Finance and General Purposes Committee of reports which indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes

. setting targets to measure financial and other performance

. clearly defined purchasing {(asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

* identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Entrust Audit Services.

The reviewer's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on
the Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

testing of payrol! systems

testing of purchase systems

testing of control accouny bank reconciliations
testing of inventory

* & & »

On an annuat basis, the reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees through the finance and audit committee on
the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities.
On an annual basis the reviewer prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, Key
findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider aclions and assess year on year
progress.

The trust confirms that the internal audirtor delivered the schedule of work as planned and remedied action as
being taken for the control issues identified,
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Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
Puring the year in question the review has been informed by.

the work of the internal auditors;

[ ]

. the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

. the school resource management self-assessment tool;

. the work of the executive managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the intema! controt framework,

. the wark of the external auditors;

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the finance and audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 December 2023 and signed on their behalf
by:
Gguﬁwmd by:
R GTAL4AZD7EAD0 .
rS M Slate K Rochester
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
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As accounting officer of Uttoxeter Learning Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy
Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA} of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms and conditions of afl funding, including for estates safety and management,
under the funding agreement between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of
my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any materiat irregular or improper
use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding
under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

E&c&cusbnm by:
BTASE604A2DTEA00
K Rochester

Accaounting Officer
Date: 12 December 2023
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financiat year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are

required fo:

select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts Direction

2022 to 2023;

. make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable aceuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the

purposes intended.
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financhal information

included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Trustees have used their best endeavours to carry out the above duties and responsibilities.

embersufthe Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by:

Chair of Trustees

Date: 12 December 2023
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Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of Uttoxeter Learning Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Uttoxeter Learning Trust (the ‘academy trust') for the year ended 31
August 2023 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes, including a summary of significan! accounting poficies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 '"The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand’, the Charities SORP 2018 and the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

in our opinion the financial statements;

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Gensrally Accepted Accounting
Praclice; and

. have been prepared in accerdance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporiing Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilied our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on ihe work we have performed, we have not identified any materat uncertainties relating to events or
canditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{continued)

Other information

The other informalion comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial
statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained
within the Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
therecn. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we Identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
. the Trustees’ Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal

requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report including the Strategic

Repor.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or retums adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

. certain disclosures of Trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibitities of trustees

As explained moare fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibliities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine Is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responasible for assessing the Academy Trusi's ability to
continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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{continued}

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs {UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

frregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, oullined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of ireguiarities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecling irregularifies, including fraud is
detailed below:

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

« the senior statutory auditor ensured that the engagement team coltectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

+« we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the academy trust through discussions with directors and
other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the sectar,

» we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on the
financial statements or the operations of the academy trust, inciuding the financial reporting legisiation,
Companles Act 2008, Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, anti-bribery,
employment, and environmental and heaith and safety legisiation;

« we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and reguiations identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspendence; and

+ identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained
aler! to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the academy trust financial statements to material misstatement, including
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might oceur, by:

+« making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

« considering the internal controls in place to mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

+ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected refationships;

+ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

« assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates set out in
Note 2 were indicative of potential bias; and

+ invesligated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

« agreeing financial stalement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

« reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

» enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

+ reviewing comrespondence with HMRC, relevant regulators and the academy trust legal advisors.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Auditors’ Report on the financial statements to the Members of Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{continued}

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irreguiarities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely fo become aware of Instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors' Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’ Report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy
Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the apinions we have formed.

-

Simon Hawkins {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behaif of
Dains Audit Limited

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Village
Forge Lane
Stoke-on-Trent

ST1 5RQ

12 December 2023
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Uttoxeter Learning Trust and
the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 3 November 2023 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement fo obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Uttoxeter Learning Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have
been applied 1o the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them,

This report is made solely to Uttoxeter Learning Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Uttoxeter Learning Trust and ESFA
those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, wa do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Uttoxeter Learning Trust and ESFA, for our
work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Uttoxeter Learning Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Uttoxeter Learning Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 30 March 2017 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Pariament and the financial ransactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are 1o obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform te the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement [etter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently daes not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion,

Qur engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure.
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Uttoxeter Learning Trust and
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come fo our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and Income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been
appiied to purpeses intended by Parfiament and the financial fransactions do not conform to the authorities which

govern them.

b pult

Dains Audit Limited

Suite 2, Albion House
2 Etruria Office Viliage
Forge Lane
Stoke-on-Trent

ST1 6RQ

Date: 12 December 2023
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Statemnent of financial activities {incorporating income and expenditure account}

For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Totat
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
Note £ E £ £ £
income from:
Donations and capital
grants: 3
Transfer on
conversion from local
authority - - - - 4,704,645
Qther donations and
capital grants 26,244 36,081 1,460,863 1,523,188 3,227417
Other trading activities 5 387,274 - - 387,274 135,989
investments 6 512 - - 512 607
Charitable activities 4 134,017 16,056,815 - 16,150,832 15,266,103
Total income 548,047 16,092,896 1,460,863 18,101,806 23,334,761
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 312,323 - - 312,323 143,084
Charitabie activities 8 135,256 16,368,412 1,205,931 17,709,599 16,717,271
Improvement to
property occupied by
the academy trust 7 - - - - 857,339
Total expenditure 447,579 16,368,412 1,205,931 18,021,922 17,717,674
Net income/
{expenditure) 100,468 {275,516) 254,832 79,884 5,617,087
Transfers between
funds 19 {8,550} (75,131) 83,681 - -
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/{losses)
carried forward 91,918 {350,647) 338,613 79,884 5,617,087
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Staternent of financial activities {(incorporating income and expenditure account) {continued)

For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Net movementin
funds before other
recognised
gainsi/{fosses)
breught forward 91,918 {350,647) 338,613 79,884 5,617,087
Other recognised
gainsf/{losses):
Actuarial gains on
defined benefit
pension schemes 27 - 1,428,000 - 1,428,000 6,702,000
Net movement in
funds 91,918 $,077,353 338,613 1,507,884 12,319,087
Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought
forward 1,837,177 {696,862) 31,659,983 32,500,298 20,181,211
Net movement in funds 91,918 1,077,353 338,613 1,507,884 12,318,087
Total funds carried
forward 1,629,095 380,491 31,998,596 34,008,182 32,500,298

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 45 to 73 form pari of these financial statements.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee}

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2023

Note
Fixed assets

Tangible assels 14

Current assets

Debtors: amounts falling due after more than
one year 15

Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 15
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one
year 16

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 17

Provisions for fiabilities 18

Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 27

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy Trust
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds 19
Restricted income funds 19
Restrictad funds excluding pension asset 19
Pension reserve 14
Total restricted funds 19
Unrestricted income funds 19
Total funds

2023
£
29,645,056
29,645,056
500,000
2,854,233
4,971,360
8,325,593
(2,620,418)
5,705,175
35,350,231
(572,835)
(45,214)
34,732,182
(724,000)
34,008,182
31,098,506
1,104,491
33,103,087
(724,000)
32,379,087
1,629,005
34,008,182

1,192,998
2,922,705
4,584,525

8,700,228

(1,702,314)

31,659,983
1,359,138

33,018,121
(2,056,000)

2022

28,113,821

28,113,821

8,987,914

35,111,735

(507,768)
(47,669)

34,556,298

{2,056,000)

32,500,298

30,963,121
1,537,177

32,500,298
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Registered number: 10547353

Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Balance Sheet {continued)
As at 31 August 2023

The financial statements on pages 40 to 73 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 12
December 2023 and are signed og their behalf, by:

My &5 M Slater
CHair of Trustees

The notes on pages 45 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash pravided byf/(used in} operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 45 to 73 form part of these financial statements

Note

21

23

22

24,25

2023 2022
£ £
1,374,797  {1.628.373)
(1,049,331} 2,899,489
61,369 319,897
386,835 1,590,013
4,584,525 2,994,512
4,971,360 4,584,525
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1.  Accounting policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted {which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
bean prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities; Statement of Recemmended Praclice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)}, the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Goiny concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Acaderny Trust to continue as a going concern, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of
a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existenice
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entittement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes bul not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entiiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entilement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricled fixed asset fund, Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recagnised on a recelvable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other Income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

Expenditure

Expenditure is recegnised once there is a lega! or constructive obligation to transfer ecenamic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atlributable to a single activity are aliocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute fo more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All rescurces expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Government grants

Government grants relating to tangible fixed assets are treated as deferred Income and released to
the Statement of Financial Activities over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. Other
grants are credited to the Statement of Financial Activities as the related expenditure is incurred,

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it mests the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Page 46



DocuSign Envelope 10; BFR16DC1-6200-42A7-8954-5B8FFQAZ3150

Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1 Accounting policies {continued)

1.8

1.8

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capilalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific canditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asse! fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unresiricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property - 7 - 125 years
Furniture and equipment - 0 years
Computer equipment - 3 years

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified 1o freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out i events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable, Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
Josses are recagnised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Debtors

Trade and other deblors are recognised at the settliement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

1.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bark and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with & short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

1.11 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the setiiement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably,

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to setile the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific fo the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.13 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial
assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at armortised cost as detailed in note 15, Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial Jiabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amoriised cost as detailed in notes 18 and 17. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed o be a
financial lability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

1.14 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Uttoxeter Learning Trust
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1. Accounting policies {continued)

1.15 Pensions

Retirement benefits 1o employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme (“TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-empioyer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme, and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assels are measured at fair
value and fiabilites are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate eguivalent to the current rate of refurn on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuariat valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, seitlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.16 Agency arrangements
The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-18 bursary funds from ESFA.
Payments received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are exclouded fram the
Statement of Financial Activities as the Academy Trust does not have control over the charitable
application of the funds,
The funds received and paid, and any balances held are disclosed in note 31.

1.17 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise alf other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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{A Company Limited by Guaraniee}

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

2. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimales and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Critical areas of judgment:

Under 125 year lease:

The long term leasehold land and bulldings within the accounts refates to the academy premises which
were transferred to the Trust from Staffordshire County Council as the schools converted to academies on
a 125 year lease. The leasehold land and buildings were vaiued using VOA valuation. These are being
depreciated in accordance with the depreciation policies set cut in note 1.

The academy trust company occupies:

{a) land provided {o it by the Local Authority under a 125 year lease (as detailed above);

{b) land provided to it by site trustees under a mere licence {also referred to as a Church

Supplemental Agreement) which contains a two year notice period.

in respect of;

(a) a figure is entered that reflects advice taken on the value of the lease;

(b) Having considered the fact that the academy trust company occupies the land and such

buildings as may be or may come to be erected on it by a mere licence that transfers to the

academy no rights or control over the site save that of ocoupying it at the will of the site

trustees under the terms of the relevant site trust, the directors have concluded that the value

of the land and buildings occupied by the academy trust company will not be recognised on

the balance sheet of the company.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Futhermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full acluarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2023. Any differences beatween the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuariaf valuation would impact on the carrying ameunt of the pension liability.
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{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financia!l Statements
Fer the Year Ended 31 August 2023

3. Income from donations and capital grants
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Donations 26,244 36,081 - 62,325 46,420
Grants - - 1,460,863 4,460,863 3,180,997
Transferred on conversion from

locat authority - - - - 4,704,645
26,244 36,081 1,460,863 1,523,188 7.932,062

Total 2022 256,710 {155,925} 7.831.277 7,832,062
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

4, Funding for the Academy Trust's charitable activities

Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Educational Operations
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 13,552,638 13,552,638 13,002,221
Other DIE/ESFA grants
Supplementary grant - 359,592 359,592 149,078
Pupil Premium - 448,526 446,526 363,990
UIFSM - 121,574 121,574 103,896
Gther DfEJESFA grants - 458,405 458,405 300,696
Teachers' pay/Pension grants - 53,029 53,029 76,986

- 14,991,764 14,991,764 13,996,867
Other Government grants

Special educational projects - 397,315 397,315 330,830
LAC grants - 13,741 13,741 -
Local authority grants - 448,994 448,994 310,801

- 860,050 860,050 641,631
Other income from the Academy Trust's

educational operations 134,017 205,001 339,018 486,390
COVID-19 additional funding (non-

DIE/ESFA)

Other DFE/ESFA COVID-18 funding - - - 141,215

134,017 16,056,815 16,190,832 15,266,103

Total 2022 255,496 15,010,607 15,266,103
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

5, fncome from other trading activities

Hire of Facilities
Cther income

Total 2022

6. investment income

investment income

Total 2022

Unrestricted Total Totai
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
80,696 80,696 86,086
306,578 306,578 49,903
337,274 387,274 135,989
135,982 135,988
Unrestricted TFotal Total
funds funds funds
2023 2023 2022
£ £ £
512 512 607
607 607
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7. Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2023 2823 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising
voluntary income:
Direct costs - - 32,584 32,584 -
Expenditure on fundraising
trading activities:
Direct costs 134,279 - 145,460 279,739 143,064
Educationai Operations:
Direct costs 10,911,677 852,480 1,128,254 12992411 11,502,255
Allocated suppert costs 1,916,701 1,271,748 1,528,732 4,717,188 5,215,016
Improvement fo diocesan
property cccupied by the
academy trust - - - - 217,341
improvement fo property
occupied by the academy
trust - - - - 635,998
12,962,657 2,224,228 2,835,037 18,021,922 17,717,674
Total 2022 12,781,448 2,840,048 2,096,178 17,717,674

During the year the Trust spent £77,593 on improvement to diocesan property occupied by the academy
trust and £147,569 to improvement to property occupied by the academy trust. These costs have been
included within educational support costs under the header other premises cosls.

8. Analysis of expenditure by activities

Activities
undertaken Support Total Total
directly costs funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Educational Operations 12,992,411 4,717,188 17,709,589 16,717,271
Total 2022 11,502,255 5,215,016 16,717,271
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8. Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs

Staff costs

Depreciation

Catering

Staff development and other staff costs
Technology costs

Other Costs

Insurance costs

Recruitment and other staff expenses
Maintenance of premises and special facilities
Cleaning and caretaking

Operating lease rentals

Rates

Security

Energy

Lega! and professional

Transport

Gavernance costs

Other premises cosis

9. Net income/(expenditure}

Net income/{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation of tangible fixed assels
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit
- other services

Total Total
funds fuhds
2023 2022
£ £
88,000 -
1,916,701 2,956,141
253,451 224,272
313,566 -
18,519 -
218,604 250,473
173,468 615,741
58,575 -
4,881 -
230,435 1,065,257
175,008 -
27,673 -
71,789 -
809 -
664,286 “
196,313 24,528
9,101 -

- 78,603
205,807 -
4,717,188 5,215,016

2023 2022

£ £

27,673 24,187
1,205,931 1,144,240
22,500 28,750
3,850 7.025
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10. Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows!

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension cosis

Agency staff costs

b, Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as fofllows:

Teachers
Administration and support
Management

¢. Higher pald staff

2023 2022

£ £
9,550,203 8,700,800
944,734 858,024
2,268,332 2,973,368
12,763,269 12,532,192
199,388 249,256
12,962,657 12,781,448
2023 2022

No. No.

157 155

211 189

10 9

378 353

The number of employees whose employee benefits {excluding employer pension costs) exceeded

£60,000 was.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
in the band £70,601 - £80,000
in the band £80,001 - £90,000
In the band £99,001 - £100,000

2023
No.

10
2

1

2

2022
No.

6

2
1
1
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10.  Staff {continued)

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management {eam as listed on page 1. The tatal amount of key management persennel benefils
(including ermployer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key
management personne! for their services to the Academy Trust was £996,955 (2022 - £886,198).

11. Central services

The Academy Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

human services

financial services

lega! services
educationsupport services

The Academy Trust charges for these services on the following basis:

3% of GAG Income for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 December 2022 and 4% from 1 January 2023.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

Thomas Alleyne’s High School
Windsor Park Middie School

Picknalls First School

All Saints CofE First Schoot .
Hutchinson Memarial CofE First School
Cldfields Hall Middle School

Ryecroft C.E. Middle School

The Richard Clarke First School
Bramshall Meadows First School

Total

12. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

2023 2023

£ £
202,788 165,865
66,607 50,169
46,298 35,488
11,158 8,182
14,093 10,684
89,453 73,845
38,061 29,940
21,589 15,783
490,047 389,966

During the year, no Trustees received any remuneration or other benefits (2022 - £NIL).

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2022 - ENIL}.
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13, Trustees' and QOfficers’ insurance

The Academy Trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.

14. Tangible fixed assets

Assets Furniture
Freehoid under and Computer
property construction eguipment equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £
Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2022 30,792,145 425,607 1,733,767 333,475 33,284,994
Additions - 2,538,271 97,343 101,552 2,737,166
Transfers between classes - {720,214) 720,214 - -
At 31 August 2023 30,792,145 2,243,664 2,551,324 435,027 36,022,160
Depreciation
At 1 September 2022 4,469,080 - 470,974 231,109 5171,173
Charge for the year 952,480 - 190,932 62,519 1,205,931
At 31 August 2023 5.421,570 - 661,906 293,628 6,377,104
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 25,370,575 2,243,664 1,889,418 141,399 29,645,056
At 31 August 2022 26,323,055 425 607 1,262,793 102,366 28,113,821
15. Debtors
2023 2022
£ £
Due after more than ¢ne year
Prepayments and accrued income 500,000 1,192,998
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18.

16.

Debtors (continued)

2023 2022
£ £
Due within one year

Frade debtors 51,235 21,000
Other debtors 144,246 111,930
Prepayments and accrued income 2,658,752 2,789,775
2,854,233 2,922,708

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2023 2022
£ £
Other loans 47,406 51,104
Trade creditors 1,130,878 710,082
Other taxation and social security 213,851 200,053
Other creditors 287 405 267,347
Accruals and deferred income 940,877 473,728
2,620,418 1,702,314

Included within other loans is £7,856 (2022 - £7 856} from Staffordshire County Council which is provided

at an interest rate of 0.5% above Bank of England rate with yearly instalments.

Included within other loans is Salix loans of £38,231 (2022 - £43,248). This is repayable in instalments

and is interest free.

Included within other loans are CIF loans of £1,319 (2022 - £nil). These are repayable in instalments and

have fixed interest rates.

2023 2022

£ £

Deferred income at 1 September 2022 102,306 149,582
Resources deferred during the year 398,476 102,306
Amounts released from previous periods {102,308} {149,582)
388,476 102,306

Deferred income held at 31 August 2023 relates to the following:

- £74,453 (2022 - £62,507) Universal Infant Free School Meals
- £216,016 (2022 - £5,151) Government Grants

« £89,102 (2022 - £10,940) Trip income

- £8,905 (2022 - £23,708) Other income
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17.

18.

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2023 2022
£ £
Other loans 572,835 507,768

Included within other loans is Salix loans of £67,558 (2022 £101,219). This is repayable in instalments
and is interest free.

Included within other loans are CIF loans of £505,277 (2022 £406,549). These are repayable in
instalments and have fixed interest rates.

Provisions
Other
provision
£
At 1 September 2022 47,669
Amounts used {2,455)
45,214

Included in provisions is an amount of £45,214 relating to the cost of replacement of floodlit synthetic
pitch which is jointly held by the Trust and East Stafferdshire Borough Council.
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19.

Statement of funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout (Losses} 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Unirestricted
funds
General Funds 1,537,177 548,047 (447,579) {8,550) - 1,629,095
Restricted
general funds
General Apnual
Grant (GAG) 1,359,138 13,552,638 (13,769,578) (37,707) - 1,104,491
Pupil Premium - 446,526 (446,526) - - -
Teachers'
Pay/Pension
Grants - 53,029 {53,029) - - -
Other
Government
Grants - 860,050 (860,050) - - -
UIFSM - 121,574 {121,574) - - .
Other DIE/ESFA
Grants - 817,997 {780,573} (37,424} - -
Other Income - 241,082 (241,082) - . -
Pension reserve (2,056,000} - {96,000} - 1,428,000 (724,000)
(696,862} 16,092,896 (16,368,412) (75,131) 1,428,000 380,491
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19. Statement of funds (continued}

Balance at 1 Bzlance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2023
£ £ £ £ £ £
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Transfer on
conversion 23,998,294 . (B71,577) - - 23,126,717
DfE Group
capital grants 7,259,045 1,460,863 (309,807} {189,563) - 8,220,538
Capitai
expenditure
from GAG 402,644 . (22,877) 227,270 . 607,037
Capital
expenditure
from other
funding - - (1,670} 45,974 . 44,304
31,659,983 1,460,863 (1,205,931} 83,681 - 31,998,596

Total Restricted
funds 30,963,121 17,563,758 (17,574,343} 8,550 1,428,000 32,379,087

Total funds 32,500,298 18,101,806 {18,021,922) - 1,428,000 34,008182

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds represent those resources which maybe used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted funds (excluding pension and other restricted reserves) represent funds received from the
Department of Education and is specifically spent on the rurning of the Academy Trust.

Pension reserve reprasents the liability on the Local Government Pension Scheme liability.

Other restricted reserve represents funs which are restricted by the donor including schoal trip income,
Restricted fixed asset funds represent resources which are applied to specific capital purposes imposed
by the Depariment of Education where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose. The
transfer between unrestricted and restricted fixed asset funds relates to unrestricted funds used for capital

expenditure,

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on
the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.
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19.

Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted
funds

General funds

Restricted
general funds

General Annual
Grant {(GAG)

Pupii Premium

Teachers' Pay/

Pension
Grants

COVID Catch
Up Premium
Other DIE/ESFA

Covid 18
Funding
Other
Government
Grants

PE Sports
CGrants

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Transfer on
conversion

DfE Group
capital granis

Capital
expenditure
from GAG

Balance at

1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains! 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
1,208,510 648,802 {320,135} - - 1,537,177
816,163 13,002,221 (12,455,269) (3,977} - 1,359,138

- 363,990 (363,980} - - -

- 76,986 (76,986} - - -

22,230 - {22,230} - - -

- 141,215 {141,215} - - -

- 1,280,293  (1,280,283) - - -

- 149,977 {149,977} - - -
(7,692,000} {180,000) (908,000} - 6,702,000  (2.056,000}
{6,853,607) 14,854,682 (15,395,960} {3,977y 6,702,000 (696,862)
20,192,585 4,650,280 (844,571} - - 23,998,294

5,221,026 3,180,897 (1,142,978} - - 7,259,045
412,697 - {14,030} 3,877 - 402,644
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19. Statement of funds (continued)

Balance at
1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
25,826,308 7,831,277  {2,001,579) 3,877 - 31,659,983

Total Restricted

funds 18,872,701 22,685,959 (17,397,539) - 6,702,000 30,983,121
Total funds 20,181,211 23,334,761 (17,717,674) - 6,702,000 32,500,298

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
Thomas Alleyne's' High School 785,189 847,122
Windsor Park Middie School 74,858 138,576
Picknalls First School 560,942 579,124
All Saint's CofE First Schogl 98,051 112,951
Hutchinson Memortial CofE First School 53,799 66,924
Oidfields Hall Middie School 388,405 352,754
Ryecroft C.E. Middle School _ 251,290 312,5_81
The Richard Clarke First School 274,245 230,758
Bramshall Meadows First School 42,726 66,092
Cenfral services 207,081 189,333
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 2,733,586 2,896,315
Restricted fixed asset fund 31,998,596 31,659,983
Pension reserve {724,000) (2.056,000)
Total 34,008,182 32,500,298
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19. Statement of funds (continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational  exciuding Total Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £ £
Thomas
Alleyne's' High
Schoot 4,158,930 664,109 156,042 1,144,116 6,123,197 6,578,201
Windsor Park
Middle Schoo! 1,507,227 344,459 27,287 343,822 2,222,785 2,153,242
Picknalls First
Schoal 1,123,224 235,233 69,761 330,728 1,758,947 1,553,248
All Saint's CofE
First School 220,277 99,992 10,188 117,446 447,904 432,025
Hutchinson
Memorial CofE
First School 304,032 34,497 6,316 205,427 550,272 674,854
Cldfields Hall
Middle Schoaol 2,010,504 265,971 56,919 514,003 2,847,397 2,826,471
Ryecroft C.E.
Middle School 822504 134,339 18,802 230,309 1,266,044 1,222,883
The Richard
Clarke First
School 459,083 59,598 5,802 177,900 702,383 675,916
Bramshall
Meadows First
School 152,288 58,653 14,176 104,652 329,779 36,001
Central services 145,508 164,129 150 171,486 471,273 423,019

Academy Trust 10,803,877 2,050,980 365,444 3399890 16,719,991 16,575,850

P ————
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20,

Analysis of net assets between funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2023 2023 2023 2023
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 29,645,056 28,645,056
Debtors due after more than one vear - 500,000 - 500,000
Current assets 1,629,095 3,842,958 2,353,540 7,825,593
Creditors due within one year - (2,620,418) - (2,620,418)
Creditors due in more than one year - {572,835) - {572,835)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (769,214) - (769,214)
Total 1,629,095 380,491 31,998,596 34,008,182
Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2022 2022 2022 2022
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 28,113,821 28,113,821
Deblors due after more than one year - 1,192,998 - 1,192,998
Current assets 1,536,934 2,424,134 3,546,162 7,507,230
Creditors due within one year 243 {1,702,557) - (1,702,314}
Creditors due in more than cne year - {507,768) - (507,768}
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {2,103,669) - (2,103,669}
1,537,177 {696,862) 31,659,983 32,500,298

Total
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21,

22,

23.

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Capitai grants from DfE and other capital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost
Decreasel(increase) in deblors

increase in creditors

Loss on disposal

Cash recelved on transfer on conversion to an academy trust
Movement in provisions

Net {Surplus) on assets and labilities from LA on conversion

Net cash provided by/{used in} operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from new borrowing
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assels

Capital grants from DIE Group

Cash received frorn LA on conversion

Net cash {used in)/provided by investing activities

2023 2022
£ £
79,884  5617,087
1,205,931 1,144,240
(1,460,863) (3,208,323}
(512) (607}
. 160,000
8,000 770,000
88,000 136,000
761,471 (2,062,588)
690,431 676,804
- 3,409
- (214,365)
2,455 (750)
- (4,650,280)
1,374,797  (1,629,373)
2023 2022
£ £
100,000 400,000
(38,634) (80,103)
61,369 319,897
2023 2022
£ £
512 607
(2,510,706)  (523,806)
1,460,863 3,208,323
- 214,365
{1,049,331) 2,899,489
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24,

25,

26.

27,

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
£ £
Cash in hand and at bank 4,971,360 4,584,525
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,971,360 4,584,525
Analysis of changes in net debt
At 1 Other non-
September New loans cash At 31
2022 Cash flows received changes August 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Cash at bank and in hand 4,584,525 386,835 - - 4,871,360
Debt due within 1 year {51,104) 38,631 - {34,933) (47,406}
Debt due after 1 year (507,768} - {100,000} 34,933 (572,835}
4,025,653 425,466 {100,000} - 4,351,119
Capital commitments
2023 2022
£ £
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements 1,913,932 2,771,716

Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales {TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Staffordshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial vajuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31
March 2018.

Contributions amounting to £246,030 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £226,402)
and are included within creditors.
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27,

Pension commitments (continued)
Teachers' Pension Schame

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statulory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership s automatic for full-ime feachers in
academies. All teachers have the option fo apt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contribulions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Penslon Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TP3
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions {Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors. The 31 March 2018 TPS actuarial valuation results were
implemented from 1 September 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation
were:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy)
. total scheme liabilities {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of fulure benefits) for

service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional invesiments held at the vajuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
nolional past service deficit of £22,000 million

. the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment refurn. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPl, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023, The
revised employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1,495,275 (2022 - £1,396.675).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
{hitps:/iwww.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/201 9/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
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27. Pension commitments {continued)

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £857,000 (2022 -
£794,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £703,000 (2022 - £652,000} and employees’
contributions totalled £154,000 {2022 - £142,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 24.2

per cent for employers and 5.5-12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee thal, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liablliies would be met by the
Depattrment for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute

published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023

%

Rate of increase in szlaries 3.50
Rate of increase for pensions in paymentinflation 3.00
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.20

2022
%
3.45
3.056
4.25

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates,

The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023
Years
Retiring today
Males 18.3
Females 23.5
Retiring in 20 years
Males 2.7
Females 25.3

2022
Years

21.2
238

222
255
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27. Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligations

Discount rate +0.1%

Discount rate -0.1%

Mortality assumption - 1 year increase
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease
CPirate +0.1%

CPirate -0.1%

Salary rate +0.1%

Salary rate -0.1%

Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Corporate bonds

Property

Cash and other liquid assets

Total market value of assets

The actual loss on scheme assets was £724,000 (2022 - £ (2,056,000} ).

The amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activiies are as follows:

Current service cost
{nterest income
interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

2023 2022
£000 £000
{191,000) (207.000)
191,000 207,000
337,000 353,000
{337.000) {353,000)
172,000 188,000
(172,000} {188,000)
23,000 20,000
(23,000} (20,000)
At 31 At 31
August 2023 August 2022
£ £
5,153,000 4,873,000
1,769,000 1,083,000
615,000 609,000
154,000 203,000
7,691,000 6,768,000
2023 2022
£ £
{711,600) (1,422,000
300,000 108,000
(388,000) {244,000)
{1,558,000)

(799,000}

Page 71



DocuSign Envelope 1D: BFO16DC1-6200-42A7-8954-5B8FFDA23150

Uttoxeter Learning Trust
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 August 2023

27.

28.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September 8,824,000 13,626,000
Conversion of academy trusts - 456,000
Current service cost 711,000 1,422,000
Interest cost 388,000 244,000
Employee contributions 154,000 142,000
Actuarial gains {1,416,000} (6,965,000)
Benefits paid {246,000) (101,000}
At 31 August 8,415,000 8,824,000
Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:
2023 2022
£ £
At 1 September 6,768,000 5,934,000
Conversion of academy trusts - 286,000
Interest income 300,000 108,000
Actuarial gains/(losses) 12,000 {263,000)
Employer contributions 703,000 652,000
Employee contributions 154,000 142,000
Benefits paid (246,000} (101,000)
At 31 August : 7,691,000 6,768,000

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

2023 2022

£ £

Not later than 1 year 17,946 24,674
Later than 1 year and not later than § years 23,676 11,037
41,622 35711
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29,

30,

31.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debls and liabililies contracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the Academy Trust and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the truslees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in
accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all
transactions made on or afler 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the
Academy Trust's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and
related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place In the period of account, other than cerain Trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 12,

Agency arrangements
The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA.

in the accounting period ending 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust received £16,450 (20622 - £17,155)
and disbursed £9,044 (2022 - £8,831) from the fund. An amount of £25,073 (2022 - £17,667) is in
included in other creditors relating to undistributed funds that is repayable to ESFA,
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